PHA 5-Year and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban OMB No. 2577-0226

Development Expires 4/30/2011
Annual Plan Office of Public and Indian Housing
1.0 PHA Information
PHA Name: HANCOCK METRPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY PHA Code: OH082
PHA Type:  [] Small High Performing [] Standard HCV (Section 8)
PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): 01/01/2010
2.0 Inventory (based on ACC units at time of FY beginning in 1.0 above)
Number of PH units: 0 Number of HCV units: 864
3.0 Submission Type
5-Year and Annual Plan [ Annual Plan Only [ 5-Year Plan Only
4.0 PHA Consortia [J PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a joint Plan and complete table below.)
PHA p Included in th p Not in th No. of Units in Each
PH HCV
PHA 1:
PHA 2:
PHA 3:
5.0 5-Year Plan. Complete items 5.1 and 5.2 only at 5-Year Plan update.
5.1 Mission. State the PHA’s Mission for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely low income families in the PHA’s
_Iiurisdicgion_for the next five years: . . o . . .
he mission of Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority is consistent with that of the Department of Housing
& Urban Development--to promote affordable, safe, decent and sanitary housing conditions in compliance
with nraaram HOS etandarde far varv lowincamae familiae
5.2 Goals and Objectives. Identify the PHA’s quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-income and very
low-income, and extremely low-income families for the next five years. Include a report on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals
and objectives described in the previous 5-Year Plan. . . . . . .
Expand supply of assisted housing by applying additional vouchers, if available; improve the quality of
assisted housing by continuing to educate landlords and continue to conduct outreach efforts with potential
nrivata landlarde mananea nranaram racniircac officiantly and cantiniie tn imnrave crictnmaor eatiefartinn
6.0 PHA Plan Update
(a) Identify all PHA Plan elements that have been revised by the PHA since its last Annual Plan submission:
There have been no updates or revisions to the PHA Plan since the last Annual Plan submission.
(b) Identify the specific location(s) where the public may obtain copies of the 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan. For a complete list of PHA Plan
elements, see Section 6.0 of the instructions.
The Five-year and Annual PHA Plans are available for review at the main offices of Hancock Metropolitan
Housing Authority, The Family Center - Suite #114, 1800 North Blanchard Street, Findlay, OH 45840. The
Plans are also available on the website at www.hancockmetro.com.
7.0 Hope VI, Mixed Finance Modernization or Development, Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing, Homeownership
Programs, and Project-based Vouchers. Include statements related to these programs as applicable.
8.0 Capital Improvements. Please complete Parts 8.1 through 8.3, as applicable.
8.1 Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report. As part of the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan, annually
' complete and submit the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1, for each current and
open CFP grant and CFFP financing.
8.2 Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan. As part of the submission of the Annual Plan, PHAs must complete and submit the Capital Fund
: Program Five-Year Action Plan, form HUD-50075.2, and subsequent annual updates (on a rolling basis, e.g., drop current year, and add latest year
for a five year period). Large capital items must be included in the Five-Year Action Plan.
8.3 Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP).
[ Check if the PHA proposes to use any portion of its Capital Fund Program (CFP)/Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) to repay debt incurred to
finance capital improvements.
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9.0

Housing Needs. Based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided by HUD, and other generally available
data, make a reasonable effort to identify the housing needs of the low-income, very low-income, and extremely low-income families who reside in
the jurisdiction served by the PHA, including elderly families, families with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups, and
other families who are on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists. The identification of housing needs must address
issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and location.
HMHA has based its statement of needs from families on the Waiting List in conjunction with the needs
expressed in the Consolidated Plan(s); activities to be undertaken in the coming year are consistent with the

initiatives contained in the Consolidated Plan and include applying for additional vouchers in the event fundinlg
ic annniinced and cnnneratina and/ar adminicterina Incal CHIP Praarame

9.1 Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a brief description of the PHA’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of families in the
jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year. Note: Small, Section 8 only, and High Performing PHAs complete only for Annual
Plan submission with the 5-Year Plan.
Continue to aggressively issue vouchers and maximize financial resources to attain optimum usage of
allocated baseline units.
10.0 | Additional Information. Describe the following, as well as any additional information HUD has requested.
(a) Progress in Meeting Mission and Goals. Provide a brief statement of the PHA’s progress in meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-
Year Plan.
See attached Statement of Progress
(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification. Provide the PHA’s definition of “significant amendment” and “substantial
deviation/modification”
NOT APPLICABLE
11.0 | Required Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In addition to the PHA Plan template (HUD-50075), PHAs must submit the following

documents. Items (a) through (g) may be submitted with signature by mail or electronically with scanned signatures, but electronic submission is
encouraged. Items (h) through (i) must be attached electronically with the PHA Plan. Note: Faxed copies of these documents will not be accepted
by the Field Office.

(a) Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations (which includes all certifications relating
to Civil Rights)

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(¢) Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(e) Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Continuation Sheet (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(f) Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. Comments received from the RAB must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA
Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their analysis of the recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.

(g) Challenged Elements

(h) Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(1) Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)
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This information collection is authorized by Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section 5A to the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937, as amended, which introduced 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans. The 5-Year and Annual PHA plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic
PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning the PHA’s operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the
public of the PHA’s mission and strategies for serving the needs of low-income and very low-income families. This form is to be used by all PHA types for submission
of the 5-Year and Annual Plans to HUD. Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 12.68 hours per response, including the time for
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD
may not collect this information, and respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

Privacy Act Notice. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title
12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses to the collection of information are
required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality

Instructions form HUD-50075

Applicability. This form is to be used by all Public Housing Agencies
(PHASs) with Fiscal Year beginning April 1, 2008 for the submission of their
5-Year and Annual Plan in accordance with 24 CFR Part 903. The previous
version may be used only through April 30, 2008.

1.0 PHA Information
Include the full PHA name, PHA code, PHA type, and PHA Fiscal Year
Beginning (MM/YYYY).

2.0 Inventory
Under each program, enter the number of Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) Public Housing (PH) and Section 8 units (HCV).

3.0 Submission Type
Indicate whether this submission is for an Annual and Five Year Plan, Annual
Plan only, or 5-Year Plan only.

4.0 PHA Consortia
Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complete the table.

5.0 Five-Year Plan
Identify the PHA’s Mission, Goals and/or Objectives (24 CFR 903.6).
Complete only at 5-Year update.

5.1 Mission. A statement of the mission of the public housing agency
for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely
low-income families in the jurisdiction of the PHA during the years
covered under the plan.

5.2 Goals and Objectives. Identify quantifiable goals and objectives
that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low income, very low-
income, and extremely low-income families.

6.0 PHA Plan Update. In addition to the items captured in the Plan
template, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to
the public. Additionally, a PHA must:

(a) Identify specifically which plan elements have been revised
since the PHA’s prior plan submission.

(b) Identify where the 5-Year and Annual Plan may be obtained by
the public. At a minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans,
including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP)
and main office or central off ice of the PHA. PHAs are
strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on its official
website. PHAs are also encouraged to provide each resident
council a copy of its 5-Year and Annual Plan.

PHA Plan Elements. (24 CFR 903.7)

1. Eligibility, Selection and Admissions Policies, including
Deconcentration and Wait List Procedures. Describe
the PHA’s policies that govern resident or tenant
eligibility, selection and admission including admission
preferences for both public housing and HCV and unit
assignment policies for public housing; and procedures for
maintaining waiting lists for admission to public housing
and address any site-based waiting lists.

Financial Resources. A statement of financial resources,
including a listing by general categories, of the PHA’s
anticipated resources, such as PHA Operating, Capital and
other anticipated Federal resources available to the PHA,
as well as tenant rents and other income available to
support public housing or tenant-based assistance. The
statement also should include the non-Federal sources of
funds supporting each Federal program, and state the
planned use for the resources.

Rent Determination. A statement of the policies of the
PHA governing rents charged for public housing and HCV
dwelling units.

Operation and Management. A statement of the rules,
standards, and policies of the PHA governing maintenance
management of housing owned, assisted, or operated by
the public housing agency (which shall include measures
necessary for the prevention or eradication of pest
infestation, including cockroaches), and management of
the PHA and programs of the PHA.

Grievance Procedures. A description of the grievance
and informal hearing and review procedures that the PHA
makes available to its residents and applicants.

Designated Housing for Elderly and Disabled Families.
With respect to public housing projects owned, assisted, or
operated by the PHA, describe any projects (or portions
thereof), in the upcoming fiscal year, that the PHA has
designated or will apply for designation for occupancy by
elderly and disabled families. The description shall
include the following information: 1) development name
and number; 2) designation type; 3) application status; 4)
date the designation was approved, submitted, or planned
for submission, and; 5) the number of units affected.

Community Service and Self-Sufficiency. A description
of: (1) Any programs relating to services and amenities
provided or offered to assisted families; (2) Any policies
or programs of the PHA for the enhancement of the
economic and social self-sufficiency of assisted families,
including programs under Section 3 and FSS; (3) How the
PHA will comply with the requirements of community
service and treatment of income changes resulting from
welfare program requirements. (Note: applies to only
public housing).

Safety and Crime Prevention. For public housing only,
describe the PHA’s plan for safety and crime prevention to
ensure the safety of the public housing residents. The
statement must include: (i) A description of the need for
measures to ensure the safety of public housing residents;
(i) A description of any crime prevention activities
conducted or to be conducted by the PHA; and (iii) A
description of the coordination between the PHA and the
appropriate police precincts for carrying out crime
prevention measures and activities.
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9.  Pets. A statement describing the PHAs policies and
requirements pertaining to the ownership of pets in public
housing.

10. Civil Rights Certification. A PHA will be considered in
compliance with the Civil Rights and AFFH Certification
if: it can document that it examines its programs and
proposed programs to identify any impediments to fair
housing choice within those programs; addresses those
impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the
resources available; works with the local jurisdiction to
implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to
affirmatively further fair housing; and assures that the
annual plan is consistent with any applicable Consolidated
Plan for its jurisdiction.

11. Fiscal Year Audit. The results of the most recent fiscal
year audit for the PHA.

12. Asset Management. A statement of how the agency will
carry out its asset management functions with respect to
the public housing inventory of the agency, including how
the agency will plan for the long-term operating, capital
investment, rehabilitation, modernization, disposition, and
other needs for such inventory.

13. Violence Against Women Act (VAWA). A description
of: 1) Any activities, services, or programs provided or
offered by an agency, either directly or in partnership with
other service providers, to child or adult victims of
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; 2) Any activities, services, or programs provided
or offered by a PHA that helps child and adult victims of
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, to obtain or maintain housing; and 3) Any
activities, services, or programs provided or offered by a
public housing agency to prevent domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, or to enhance
victim safety in assisted families.

7.0 Hope VI, Mixed Finance Modernization or Development,
Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing,
Homeownership Programs, and Project-based Vouchers

(a) Hope VI or Mixed Finance Modernization or Development.
1) A description of any housing (including project number (if
known) and unit count) for which the PHA will apply for HOPE
VI or Mixed Finance Modernization or Development; and 2) A
timetable for the submission of applications or proposals. The
application and approval process for Hope VI, Mixed Finance
Modernization or Development, is a separate process. See
guidance on HUD’s website at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/programs/ph/hope6/index.cfm

(b) Demolition and/or Disposition. With respect to public housing
projects owned by the PHA and subject to ACCs under the Act:
(1) A description of any housing (including project number and
unit numbers [or addresses]), and the number of affected units
along with their sizes and accessibility features) for which the
PHA will apply or is currently pending for demolition or
disposition; and (2) A timetable for the demolition or
disposition. The application and approval process for demolition
and/or disposition is a separate process. See guidance on HUD’s
website at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/demo_dispo/index.c
fm
Note: This statement must be submitted to the extent that
approved and/or pending demolition and/or disposition has
changed.

(¢) Conversion of Public Housing. With respect to public
housing owned by a PHA: 1) A description of any building
or buildings (including project number and unit count) that
the PHA is required to convert to tenant-based assistance or

that the public housing agency plans to voluntarily convert;
2) An analysis of the projects or buildings required to be
converted; and 3) A statement of the amount of assistance
received under this chapter to be used for rental assistance or
other housing assistance in connection with such conversion.
See guidance on HUD’s website at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/centers/sac/conversion.cfim

(d) Homeownership. A description of any homeownership
(including project number and unit count) administered by
the agency or for which the PHA has applied or will apply
for approval.

(¢) Project-based Vouchers. If the PHA wishes to use the
project-based voucher program, a statement of the projected
number of project-based units and general locations and how
project basing would be consistent with its PHA Plan.

8.0 Capital Improvements. This section provides information on a PHA’s
Capital Fund Program. With respect to public housing projects owned,
assisted, or operated by the public housing agency, a plan describing the
capital improvements necessary to ensure long-term physical and social
viability of the projects must be completed along with the required
forms. Items identified in 8.1 through 8.3, must be signed where
directed and transmitted electronically along with the PHA’s Annual
Plan submission.

8.1 Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report. PHAs must complete the Capital Fund
Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
(form HUD-50075.1), for each Capital Fund Program (CFP) to be
undertaken with the current year’s CFP funds or with CFFP
proceeds. Additionally, the form shall be used for the following
purposes:

(a) To submit the initial budget for a new grant or CFFP;

(b) To report on the Performance and Evaluation Report progress
on any open grants previously funded or CFFP; and

(¢) To record a budget revision on a previously approved open
grant or CFFP, e.g., additions or deletions of work items,
modification of budgeted amounts that have been undertaken
since the submission of the last Annual Plan. The Capital
Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report must be submitted annually.

Additionally, PHAs shall complete the Performance and
Evaluation Report section (see footnote 2) of the Capital Fund
Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation (form
HUD-50075.1), at the following times:

1. Atthe end of the program year; until the program is
completed or all funds are expended;

2. When revisions to the Annual Statement are made,
which do not require prior HUD approval, (e.g.,
expenditures for emergency work, revisions resulting
from the PHAs application of fungibility); and

3. Upon completion or termination of the activities funded
in a specific capital fund program year.

8.2 Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan

PHASs must submit the Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action
Plan (form HUD-50075.2) for the entire PHA portfolio for the first
year of participation in the CFP and annual update thereafter to
eliminate the previous year and to add a new fifth year (rolling
basis) so that the form always covers the present five-year period
beginning with the current year.

8.3 Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP). Separate, written
HUD approval is required if the PHA proposes to pledge any

Page 2 of 3

Instructions form HUD-50075 (2008)



portion of its CFP/RHF funds to repay debt incurred to finance
capital improvements. The PHA must identify in its Annual and 5-
year capital plans the amount of the annual payments required to
service the debt. The PHA must also submit an annual statement
detailing the use of the CFFP proceeds. See guidance on HUD’s
website at:

(©

PHAs must include or reference any applicable memorandum
of agreement with HUD or any plan to improve performance.
(Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually).

11.0 Required Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In order to be a

http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/programs/ph/capfund/cffp.cfim

9.0 Housing Needs. Provide a statement of the housing needs of families

10.0

complete package, PHAs must submit items (a) through (g), with
signature by mail or electronically with scanned signatures. Items (h)
and (i) shall be submitted electronically as an attachment to the PHA

residing in the jurisdiction served by the PHA and the means by which
the PHA intends, to the maximum extent practicable, to address those
needs. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the
5-Year Plan).

9.1 Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a description of
the PHA’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of families in
the jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year.

(Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annual Plan submitted
with the 5-Year Plan).

Additional Information. Describe the following, as well as any
additional information requested by HUD:

(a) Progress in Meeting Mission and Goals. PHAs must
include (i) a statement of the PHAs progress in meeting the
mission and goals described in the 5-Year Plan; (ii) the basic
criteria the PHA will use for determining a significant
amendment from its 5-year Plan; and a significant
amendment or modification to its 5-Year Plan and Annual
Plan. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete
annually; Small and High Performers complete only for
Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year Plan).

(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial
Deviation/Modification. PHA must provide the definition
of “significant amendment” and “substantial
deviation/modification”. (Note: Standard and Troubled
PHASs complete annually; Small and High Performers
complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year
Plan.)

Plan.

(a) Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with
the PHA Plans and Related Regulations

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace
(PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(¢) Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence
Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAs
receiving CFP grants only)

(e) Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
Continuation Sheet (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(f) Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments.

(g) Challenged Elements. Include any element(s) of the PHA
Plan that is challenged.

(h) Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual
Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (Must be
attached electronically for PHASs receiving CFP grants
only). See instructions in 8.1.

(i) Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year

Action Plan (Must be attached electronically for PHAs
receiving CFP grants only). See instructions in 8.2.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

PHA PLAN ELEMENTS

1. HOUSING NEEDS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY

HMHA currently has 180 very low-income households on the Waiting List (see
attachment for statistics). HMHA will continue to issue vouchers to meet and
maintain the authorized baseline of 864 units. We are currently assisting over
675 disabled and/or elderly families.

Foreclosures have increased drastically and an increase of vacated homes can be
seen throughout the community. As a result of the foreclosures and/or vacated
properties, the availability of rental units for our voucher holders has increased
substantially. Unemployment rate for our community is over 10% which is
untypical for the community.

Results of 2000 Census (attached) and 2005-2007 Community Survey Three-Year
estimate reflects an increase in renter-occupied units. The after-effects of the
Flood of 2007 are still being seen in the very-low income households in the area.

Due to the large number of inquiries for assistance, the Waiting List will be
opened October 20, 2009, to accept applications. HMHA has also contracted with
the Counties of Putnam and Wyandot and will be administering 2010 CHIP
grants. Should Hancock County be awarded any CHIP funding in the future,
HMHA will also be willing to participate in advocating and/or administering any
funding awards.

In the event the Federal Government should announce funding availability for
new vouchers, HMHA will be applying for additional vouchers. HMHA
currently has targeted funding for disability and will continue to apply for any
future funding that might be available.

HMHA conducted an advertising campaign in 2009 and established a website to
increase public awareness of its resources available to low-income households to
ensure access to assisted housing regardless of race, color, religion, national
origin, sex, familial status and disability. The site is available in 25 languages.
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2. FINANCIAL RESOURCES.

Projected 2010 Revenues:

Housing Choice Voucher Program — ACC $2,800,000
Five-year Mainstream — ACC $ 290,000
Putnam County CHIP $ 50,000
Wyandot County CHIP $ 10,800
Property Management — HCCIL $ 4320
Contracted Processing Fees — AHI $ 2,400

POLICIES ON ELIGIBILITY, SELECTION AND ADMISSION

Eligibility, Selection and Admissions Policies, including Deconcentration and
Waiting List Procedures.

Any family that wishes to receive HCV assistance must apply for admission to the
program. The PHA initially will require families to provide only the information
needed to make an initial assessment of the family’s eligibility, and to determine
the family’s placement on the waiting list. The family will be required to provide
all of the information necessary to establish family eligibility and level of
assistance when the family is selected from the waiting list.

Families may complete application for the voucher only when the waiting is open.
Opening and closing of the waiting list will be advertised in the local newspaper
or other media. date, time and location of filling out an application will be
included in the news release.

The PHA must take a variety of steps to ensure that the application process is
accessible to those people who might have difficulty complying with the normal,
standard PHA application process. This could include people with disabilities,
certain elderly individuals, as well as persons with limited English proficiency
(LEP). The PHA must provide reasonable accommodation to the needs of
individuals with disabilities. The application-taking facility and the application
process must be fully accessible, or the PHA must provide an alternate approach
that provides full access to the application process. Chapter 2 provides a full
discussion of the PHA policy related to providing reasonable accommodations for
people with disabilities.

Ineligible for Placement on the Waiting List

If the PHA can determine from the information provided that a family is
ineligible, the family will not be placed on the waiting list. Where a family is
determined to be ineligible, the PHA will send written notification of the
ineligibility determination within 10 business days of receiving a complete
application. The notice will specify the reasons for ineligibility, and will inform
the family of its right to request an informal review and explain the process for
doing so.
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Eligible for Placement on the Waiting List

The PHA will provide written notification of the preliminary eligibility
determination within 10 business days of receiving a complete application.
Placement on the waiting list does not indicate that the family is, in fact, eligible
for assistance. A final determination of eligibility will be made when the family is
selected from the waiting list. Applicants will be placed on the waiting list
according to any preference(s) for which they qualify, and the date and time the
PHA receives their completed application.

ORGANIZATION OF THE WAITING LIST

The HCV waiting list is organized in such a manner to allow the PHA to
accurately identify and select families for assistance in the proper order, according
to the admissions policies described in this plan.

The waiting list must contain the following information for each applicant
listed:

e Applicant name;

Family unit size;

Date and time of application;

Qualification for any local preference;

Racial or ethnic designation of the head of household.

The PHA will maintain a single waiting list for the HCV program. The PHA will
not merge the HCV waiting list with the waiting list for any other program the
PHA operates.

OPENING AND CLOSING THE WAITING LIST

Closing the Waiting List - The PHA will close the waiting list when the
estimated waiting period for housing assistance for applicants on the list reaches
24 months for the most current applicants. Where the PHA has particular
preferences or funding criteria that require a specific category of family, the PHA
may elect to continue to accept applications from these applicants while closing
the waiting list to others.

Reopening the Waiting List - If the waiting list has been closed, it cannot be
reopened until the PHA publishes a notice in local newspapers of general
circulation, minority media, and other suitable media outlets. The notice must
comply with HUD fair housing requirements and must specify who may apply,
and where and when applications will be received.

The PHA will announce the reopening of the waiting list at least 10 business days
prior to the date applications will first be accepted. If the list is only being
reopened for certain categories of families, this information will be contained in
the notice. The PHA will give public notice by publishing the relevant
information in local newspapers and other media outlets.
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4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

INFORMAL REVIEWS

Informal reviews are provided for program applicants. An applicant is someone
who has applied for admission to the program, but is not yet a participant in the
program. Informal reviews are intended to provide a “minimum hearing
requirement”, and need not be as elaborate as the informal hearing requirements.

Decisions Subject to Informal Review

The PHA must give an applicant the opportunity for an informal review of a
decision denying assistance. The PHA will only offer an informal review to
applicants for whom assistance is being denied. Denial of assistance includes:
denying listing on the PHA waiting list; denying or withdrawing a voucher;
refusing to enter into a HAP contract or approve a lease; refusing to process or
provide assistance under portability procedures.

A request for an informal review must be made in writing and delivered to the
PHA either in person or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no
later than 10 business days from the date of the PHA’s denial of assistance.
Except as provided in Section 3-III.G, the PHA must schedule and send written
notice of the informal review within 10 business days of the family’s request.

Informal Review Procedures

A person other than the one who made or approved the decision under review, or
a subordinate of this person must conduct the informal review. The applicant
must be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the
decision of the PHA. The person conducting the review will make a
recommendation to the PHA, but the PHA is responsible for making the final
decision as to whether assistance should be granted or denied. The final decision
is at the discretion of the Executive Director.

The PHA must notify the applicant of the PHA’s final decision, including a brief
statement of the reasons for the final decision. In rendering a decision, the PHA
will evaluate the following matters:

Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the Notice.
The validity of grounds for denial of assistance. If the grounds for denial
are not specified in the regulations, then the decision to deny assistance
will be overturned.

The validity of the evidence. The PHA will evaluate whether the facts
presented prove the grounds for denial of assistance. If the facts prove that
there are grounds for denial, and HUD requires the denial, the PHA will
uphold the decision to deny assistance.

If the facts prove the grounds for denial, and the denial is discretionary,
the PHA will consider the recommendation of the person conducting the
informal review in making the final decision whether to deny assistance.
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The PHA will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a
statement explaining the reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be
mailed within 10 business days of the informal review, to the applicant
and his or her Representative, if any, along with proof of mailing. If the
decision to deny is overturned as a result of the informal review,
processing for admission will resume. If the family fails to appear for
their informal review, the denial of admission will stand and the family
will be so notified.

INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PARTICIPANTS

A PHA must offer an informal hearing for certain PHA determinations relating to
the individual circumstances of a participant family. A participant is defined as a
family that has been admitted to the PHA’s HCV program and is currently
assisted in the program. The purpose of the informal hearing is to consider
whether the PHA’s decisions related to the family’s circumstances are in
accordance with the law, HUD regulations and PHA policies.

The PHA will only offer participants the opportunity for an informal hearing
when required to by the regulations.

Informal Hearing Procedures -Notice to the Family

When the PHA makes a decision that is subject to informal hearing procedures,
the PHA must inform the family of its right to an informal hearing at the same
time that it informs the family of the decision.

For decisions related to the family’s annual or adjusted income, the determination
of the appropriate utility allowance, and the determination of the family unit size,
the PHA must notify the family that they may ask for an explanation of the basis
of the determination, and that if they do not agree with the decision, they may
request an informal hearing on the decision.

For decisions related to the termination of the family’s assistance, or the denial of
a family’s request for an exception to the PHA’s subsidy standards, the notice
must contain a brief statement of the reasons for the decision, a statement that if
the family does not agree with the decision, the family may request an informal
hearing on the decision, and a statement of the deadline for the family to request
an informal hearing.

In cases where the PHA makes a decision for which an informal hearing must be
offered, the notice to the family will include all of the following:

The proposed action or decision of the PHA.

A brief statement of the reasons for the decision including the regulatory
reference.

The date the proposed action will take place.
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A statement of the family’s right to an explanation of the basis for the
PHA’s decision.

A statement that if the family does not agree with the decision the family
may request an informal hearing of the decision.

A deadline for the family to request the informal hearing.

To whom the hearing request should be addressed.

A copy of the PHA’s hearing procedures.

Scheduling an Informal Hearing

When an informal hearing is required, the PHA must proceed with the hearing in
a reasonably expeditious manner upon the request of the family. A request for an
informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the PHA either in
person or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 10
business days from the date of the PHA’s decision or notice to terminate
assistance. The PHA must schedule and send written notice of the informal
hearing to the family within 10 business days of the family’s request.

The family may request to reschedule a hearing for good cause, or if it is needed
as a reasonable accommodation for a person with disabilities. Good cause is
defined as an unavoidable conflict, which seriously affects the health, safety or
welfare of the family. Requests to reschedule a hearing must be made orally or in
writing prior to the hearing date. At its discretion, the PHA may request
documentation of the “good cause” prior to rescheduling the hearing.

If the family does not appear at the scheduled time, and was unable to reschedule
the hearing in advance due to the nature of the conflict, the family must contact
the PHA within 24 hours of the scheduled hearing date, excluding weekends and
holidays. The PHA will reschedule the hearing only if the family can show good
cause for the failure to appear, or if it is needed as a reasonable accommodation
for a person with disabilities.

Pre-Hearing Right to Discovery

Participants and the PHA are permitted pre-hearing discovery rights. The family
must be given the opportunity to examine before the hearing any PHA documents
that are directly relevant to the hearing. The family must be allowed to copy any
such documents at their own expense. If the PHA does not make the document
available for examination on request of the family, the PHA may not rely on the
document at the hearing.

The PHA hearing procedures may provide that the PHA must be given the
opportunity to examine at the PHA offices before the hearing, any family
documents that are directly relevant to the hearing. The PHA must be allowed to
copy any such document at the PHA’s expense. If the family does not make the
document available for examination on request of the PHA, the family may not
rely on the document at the hearing.
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For the purpose of informal hearings, documents include records and regulations.
The family will be allowed to copy any documents related to the hearing at a cost
of $.25 per page. The family must request discovery of PHA documents no later
than 12:00 p.m. on the business day prior to the scheduled hearing date.

The PHA must be given an opportunity to examine at the PHA offices before the
hearing any family documents that are directly relevant to the hearing. Whenever
a participant requests an informal hearing, the PHA will automatically mail a
letter to the participant requesting a copy of all documents that the participant
intends to present or utilize at the hearing. The participant must make the
documents available no later than 12:00 pm on the business day prior to the
scheduled hearing date.

At its own expense, a lawyer or other representative at the informal hearing may
represent the family.

Informal hearings will be conducted by a person or persons approved by the PHA,
other than the person who made or approved the decision or a subordinate of the
person who made or approved the decision.

A hearing officer and the following applicable persons may attend hearings:

A PHA representative(s) and any witnesses for the PHA

The participant and any witnesses for the participant

The participant’s counsel or other representative

Any other person approved by the PHA as a reasonable accommodation
for a person with a disability

The person who conducts the hearing may regulate the conduct of the hearing in
accordance with the PHA’s hearing procedures. The hearing officer is
responsible to manage the order of business and to ensure that hearings are
conducted in a professional and businesslike manner. Attendees are expected to
comply with all hearing procedures established by the hearing officer and
guidelines for conduct. Any person demonstrating disruptive, abusive or
otherwise inappropriate behavior will be excused from the hearing at the
discretion of the hearing officer.

The PHA and the family must be given the opportunity to present evidence and
question any witnesses. In general, all evidence is admissible at an informal
hearing. Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility under the
rules of evidence applicable to judicial proceedings.

Any evidence to be considered by the hearing officer must be presented at the
time of the hearing. There are four categories of evidence.
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Oral evidence: the testimony of witnesses

Documentary evidence: a writing, which is relevant to the case, for
example, a letter written to the PHA. Writings include all forms of
recorded communication or representation, including letters, words,
pictures, sounds, videotapes or symbols or combinations thereof.

Demonstrative evidence: Evidence created specifically for the hearing
and presented as an illustrative aid to assist the hearing officer, such as a
model, a chart or other diagram.

Real evidence: A tangible item relating directly to the case.

Hearsay Evidence is evidence of a statement that was made other than by
a witness while testifying at the hearing and that is offered to prove the
truth of the matter. Even though evidence, including hearsay, is generally
admissible, hearsay evidence alone cannot be used as the sole basis for the
hearing officer’s decision.

If either the PHA or the family fail to comply with the discovery requirements
described above, the hearing officer will refuse to admit such evidence.

Other than the failure of a party to comply with discovery, the hearing officer has
the authority to overrule any objections to evidence.

The person who conducts the hearing must issue a written decision, stating briefly
the reasons for the decision. Factual determinations relating to the individual
circumstances of the family must be based on a preponderance of evidence
presented at the hearing. A copy of the hearing must be furnished promptly to the
family. In rendering a decision, the hearing officer will consider the following
matters:

PHA Notice to the Family: The hearing officer will determine if the
reasons for the PHA’s decision are factually stated in the Notice.

Discovery: The hearing officer will determine if the PHA and the family
were given the opportunity to examine any relevant documents in
accordance with PHA policy.

PHA Evidence to Support the PHA Decision: The evidence consists of
the facts presented. Evidence is not conclusion and it is not argument. The
hearing officer will evaluate the facts to determine if they support the
PHA'’s conclusion.

Validity of Grounds for Termination of Assistance (when applicable):
The hearing officer will determine if the termination of assistance is for
one of the grounds specified in the HUD regulations and PHA policies. If
the grounds for termination are not specified in the regulations or in
compliance with PHA policies, then the decision of the PHA will be
overturned.
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The hearing officer will issue a written decision to the family and the PHA no
later than 10 business days after the hearing. The report will contain the following
information:

Hearing information:
Name of the participant;
Date, time and place of the hearing;
Name of the hearing officer;
Name of the PHA representative; and
Name of family representative (if any).

Background: A brief, impartial statement of the reason for the hearing.

Summary of the Evidence: The hearing officer will summarize the
testimony of each witness and identify any documents that a witness
produced in support of his/her testimony and that are admitted into
evidence.

Findings of Fact: The hearing officer will include all findings of fact,
based on a preponderance of the evidence. Preponderance of the evidence
is defined as evidence which is of greater weight or more convincing than
the evidence which is offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence which as
a whole shows that the fact sought to be proved is more probable than not.
Preponderance of the evidence may not be determined by the number of
witnesses, but by the greater weight of all evidence.

Conclusions: The hearing officer will render a conclusion derived from
the facts that were found to be true by a preponderance of the evidence.
The conclusion will result in a determination of whether these facts uphold
the PHA’s decision.

Order: The hearing report will include a statement of whether the PHA’s
decision is upheld or overturned. If it is overturned, the hearing officer
will instruct the PHA to change the decision in accordance with the
hearing officer’s determination. In the case of termination of assistance,
the hearing officer will instruct the PHA to restore the participant’s
program status.

Procedures for Rehearing or Further Hearing

The hearing officer may ask the family for additional information and/or might
adjourn the hearing in order to reconvene at a later date, before reaching a
decision. If the family misses an appointment or deadline ordered by the hearing
officer, the action of the PHA will take effect and another hearing will not be
granted.
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In addition, within 10 business days after the date the hearing officer’s report is
mailed to the PHA and the participant, the PHA or the participant may request a
rehearing or a further hearing. Such request must be made in writing and
postmarked or hand-delivered to the hearing officer and to the other party within

the 10 business day period. The request must demonstrate cause, supported by
specific references to the hearing officer’s report, why the request should be
granted.

A rehearing or a further hearing may be requested for the purpose of rectifying
any obvious mistake of law made during the hearing or any obvious injustice not
known at the time of the hearing. It shall be within the sole discretion of the PHA
to grant or deny the request for further hearing or rehearing. A further hearing
may be limited to written submissions by the parties, in the manner specified by
the hearing officer.

PHA Notice of Final Decision

The PHA is not bound by the decision of the hearing officer for matters in which
the PHA is not required to provide an opportunity for a hearing, decisions that
exceed the authority of the hearing officer, decisions that conflict with or
contradict HUD regulations, requirements, or are otherwise contrary to Federal,
State or local laws.

If the PHA determines it is not bound by the hearing officer’s decision in
accordance with HUD regulations, the PHA must promptly notify the family of
the determination and the reason for the determination.

The PHA will mail a “Notice of Final Decision” including the hearing officer’s
report, to the participant and their representative. This Notice will be sent by first-
class mail, postage pre-paid with an affidavit of mailing enclosed. The participant
will be mailed the original “Notice of Final Decision” and a copy of the proof of
mailing. A copy of the “Notice of Final Decision” along with the original proof
mailing will be maintained in the PHA’s file.

COMMUNITY SERVICE AND SELF-SUFFICIENCY

HMHA administers a Family Self-sufficiency Program which promotes personal,
economic and social upward mobility to provide families the opportunity to make the
transition from subsidized to non-subsidized housing. The FSS Program has four new
Participants and staff are interviewing and will be contracting with an additional
fourteen participants. All Housing Choice Voucher Program participants are
eligible for the FSS Program.

Four HMHA caseworkers have received Nan McKay training and are certified as
FSS specialists. HMHA staff also participates in the local No Wrong Door
Program which provides information on services available to assist low-income
households in our community.
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HMHA maintains membership and participates in local Housing Consortium
which addresses the housing needs of the community.

HMHA has contracted with the City of Findlay Municipal Court Community
Service Program, a voluntary alternative to court sentencing. Convicted offenders
are offered an opportunity to perform community service in lieu of incarceration.

HMHA partners with the City of Findlay NEAT (Neighborhood Enhancement
and Abatement Team) Program which is responsible for addressing community
complaints regarding properties by enforcing city codes concerning maintenance
of properties. As a result of a recent HQS failure, neighboring properties were
improved as a result of the cooperation of neighboring property owners, The City
of Findlay and HMHA.

A Speaker’s Bureau is available and a HMHA representative has provided
information on the HCV Program to the Hancock County Adult Probation
Department, Findlay City Schools Independent Living Program, Findlay Area
Apartment Association, Findlay City School Principals, various University of
Findlay classes, and served on a panel of local agencies to inform community
volunteers on the availability of assistance for rent and utilities available to the
low-income community.

HMHA launched an advertising campaign to educate the community on the
service provided by Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority and the availability
of rent subsidy assistance through HUD’s Housing Choice Voucher Program.
The advertising included brochures, newspaper (print and electronic editions),
local television commercial, and development of a website.

CIVIL RIGHTS CERTIFICATION

The Civil Rights certification form is attached and incorporated as a part of the
Annual and Five-Year Plans.

FISCAL YEAR AUDIT

HMHA receives over $300,000 annually in Federal funds and is required to have
an annual audit conducted. The Fiscal Audit for the Year ending December 31,

2008, is attached and made a part of the Annual and Five-Year Plans. There were
no material findings.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional Goals and Objectives — Fiscal Years 2010 - 2014

Promote personal, economic and social upward mobility to provide families the
opportunity to make the transition from subsidized to non-subsidized housing to
be achieved under our Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) Program;

Promote fair housing and the opportunity for very low-income families of all
ethnic backgrounds to experience freedom of housing choice;

Promote a housing program which maintains quality service and integrity while
providing an incentive to private property owners to rent to very low-income
families;

Train staff concerning HCV Program requirements, SEMAP, and other HUD
regulations;

Review existing policies and procedures and develop written recommendations
for policy revisions to the Board of Commissioners;

Continue to implement electronic imaging system throughout the office;

Continue to provide training to staff and Board of Commissioners regarding new
and/or revised policy and/or procedures as mandated by HUD;

Participate and/or administer CHIP funding for Hancock, Wyandot and Putnam
Counties, if available;

Continue to encourage client participation on Resident Advisory Board;

Continue compliance with Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) 2005, via
written notification to all applicants, program participants,

and/or landlords; partnering with local Open Arms Domestic Violence Shelter;
Landlord meeting(s) advising of tenants’ rights under VAWA; and providing
Victims of domestic Violence Certification forms in the HMHA office;

Continue to partner with local agencies to provide case management to program
participants, as needed;

Ongoing notification to program participants, applicants and landlords regarding
Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act of 2009.

Resident Advisory Board

HMHA provides tenant-based rental assistance to all of its clients. HMHA has
encouraged HCV Program clients to participate in a Resident Advisory Board
(RAB). HMHA will continue to solicit participant(s) as a RAB on the governing
board should a vacancy occur.

NOTIFICATION REGARDING APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2005
(VAWA)

NOTIFICATION TO PARTICIPANTS

VAWA requires a PHA to notify public housing program participants of their
rights under this law, including their right to confidentiality and the limits thereof.
The PHA will provide all participants with notification of their protections and
rights under VAWA at the time of admission and at annual reexamination. The
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10.

11.

notice will explain the protections afforded under the law, inform the participant
of PHA confidentiality requirements, and provide contact information for local
victim advocacy groups or service providers.

The PHA will also include in all assistance termination notices a statement
explaining assistance termination protection provided by VAWA.

NOTIFICATION TO APPLICANTS

The PHA will provide all applicants with notification of their protections and
rights under VAWA at the time they request an application for housing assistance.
The notice will explain the protections afforded under the law, inform each
applicant of PHA confidentiality requirements, and provide contact information
for local victim advocacy groups or service providers. The PHA will also include
in all notices of denial a statement explaining the protection against denial
provided by VAWA.

NOTIFICATION TO OWNERS AND MANAGERS

VAWA requires a PHA to notify owners and managers of their rights and
responsibilities under this law and to inform property owners and managers of
their screening and termination responsibilities related to VAWA. The PHA may
utilize any or all of the following means to notify owners of their VAWA
responsibilities:

As appropriate in day-to-day interactions with owners and managers.
Inserts in HAP payments, 1099s, owner workshops, classes, orientations,
and/or newsletters.

Signs in the PHA lobby and/or mass mailings, which include model
VAWA certification forms.

PROTECTING TENANTS AT FORECLOSURE ACT OF 2009

All HCV Program applicants, clients and landlords have been notified in
writing regarding the new federal law Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act
of 2009. A landlord meeting has been held featuring the Sheriff of Hancock
County and two representatives from Legal Aid of Northwestern Ohio as
guest speakers.

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and
Related Regulations (which includes all certifications relating to Civil Rights)
Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace

Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions
Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Continuation Sheet
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Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments. Comments received from the RAB
must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA Plan. PHAs must
also include a narrative describing their analysis of the recommendations and the
decisions made on these recommendations.

Challenged Elements

Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report

Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan

Statement of Progress of Attaining Goals — Five-Year Plan — Fiscal Years 2005-
2009
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Office of Public and Indian Housing

with PHA Plans and Related OMB No. 2577-0226

Regulations

Expires 4/30/2011

PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations:
Board Resolution to Accompany the PHA 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the X 5-Year andior X Annual PHA
Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning 01/01/2010 . hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”, of whick this document is a part and
matke the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with
the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1.

2

10.

11,

12,

The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such

strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.

The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable

Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing

Choice, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable

Conselidated Plan.

The PHA certifies that there has been no change, significant or otherwise, to the Capital Fund Program (and Capital Fund

Program/Replacement Housing Factor) Annuaj Statement(s), since submission of its last approved Annual Plan. The Capital

Fund Program Annual Statement/Ammual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report must be submitted annually cven if

there is no change.

The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by

the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the recommendations of the Board or

Boards (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the

Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.

The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45

days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing o discuss the Plan and

invited public comment.

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing

Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs, identify any

impediments to fair housing choice within those programs, address those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the

resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further
fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions.

For PHA Plan that includes a policy for site based waiting lists:

¢ The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner
(as specified in PTH Notice 2006-24),

»  The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in
which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant
would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;

o  Adoption of site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a
pending complaint brought by HUD,

e The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair
housing,

e The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and
certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7(c)(1).

The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act

of 1975.

The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the

Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment

Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.
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13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

2.

22.

The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24
CFR 5.105(a).
The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any docurmentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry
out its review under the Nationa! Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58
or Part 50, respectively.
With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requiremnents under
Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.
The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with
program requirements.
The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential 1.ead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CER Pan 35.
The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-87 (Cost Principles for State,
Local and Indian Tribal Governments), 2 CFR Part 225, and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments).
The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.
All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA Plan is
available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with
the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified
by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA
The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that:

(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and programs

before implementation by the PHA;
(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and
(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the PHA during
normal business hours.

The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements.

HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY QHO082

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

10 14
5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 -20

10 11
Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 -20

Therchy certify that afl the mformation stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is troe and ascurate. Warning: HUD will

secnte false clajms and stalements. Conviction may result in criminal snd/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802

Name of Authorized Officiat Title

Donna Ruse
A /7

|Board Chairperson, Hancock MHA

%}m/l/( T/ €07
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Certification for U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

a Drug-Free Workplace

Applicant Name

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

Housing Choice Voucher Program

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controtled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness prograrm to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

¢. Making it a requirement that cach employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a,;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Tdentify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority
The Family Center - Suite #114

1800 North Blanchard Street

Findlay, Hancock County, OH 45840

Check here |:| if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

1 hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may resultin criminal and/or civil penalties.

{18 U.8.C_ 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 LL.8.C. 3729, 3802}

Name of ALthorized Official
Dianne J. Osborn

Titla
Executive Director

‘;ignatureg ) B QQD&W

Dats '
160y /500
' ' form HUD-50070 (3/98)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 74851 & .3



Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 3/31/2010}

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name
Hancock Meiropolitan Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
Housing Choice Voucher Program

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employec of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or coopecrative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions,

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represeniation of fact upon which
reliznce was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

1 hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802)

Nama of Authotized Official

Dianne J. Osborn

Title

Exacutive Director, Hancock MHA

Signature

Date (mm/dd/yyyy

Previous edition is obsolete

)
/o/o £ /:)-00 g
form HUD 50071 (3/98)

ref. Handboooks 7417.1,7475.13,7485.1, 8 7485.3



Civil Rights Certification U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/2011

Civil Rights Certification

Annual Certification and Board Resolution

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioner, I approve the submission of the Plan for the PHA of which this
document is a part and make the following certification and agreement with the Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) in connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

The PHA certifies that it witl carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title IT of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and will affirmatively further fair housing.

HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY OHO82

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

I Reereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well za any information provided m the scoompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Waming: HUD will
prosecute false claims end statements. Conviction tay result in criminal md/or civil penaltics. (18 11.5.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.8.C, 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official DONNA RUSE | Tite BOARD CHAIRPERSON

- S %/d—’ 7; 27

form HUD-50077-CR {1/2009)
OMSB Approval No. 2577-0226




DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

Approved by OMB

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 0348-0046
{See raverse for public burden disclosure.)
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:
x |@. contract a. bid/offer/appiication I_.J a. initial filing
b. grant —b. initial award b. material change
c. cooperative agreament c. post-award For Material Change Only:
d. loan year quarter
e. loan guarantee date of last report
f. loan insurance

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
E_] Prime D Subawardee
Hancock Metropol A Homsing Authority
The Family Center — Suite #114
1800 North Blanchard Street
Findlay, Hancock County, OH 45840
Congressional District, if known: 4cFourth

5, if Reporting Entity In No. 4 {s a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known :

6. Federal Department/Agency:
Department of Housing & Urban Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:

Housing Choice Voucher Program

CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:
$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
{if individual, last name, first name, MI}.

NO LOBBYING ACTIVITIES TO REPORT

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, Ml ).

Information requested through this form is authorized by tike 31 U.S.C. saction
1352, This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact

M.

upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this Iransaction was made
ar entered into. This disclosure 8 required pursuant o 31 L.S.C. 1382, This
information  will be available for public inspection. Any person whe fails to file the
requiced disclosume shall be subject to a civil panally of not less than $10,000 and
nat more than $100,000 for sach such failure.

AN i f |
Signature: W\,\\QLJW
Print Name: Dianne J. Osborn"

Title: Executive Director

/

Date: /0/0 ‘Z/Z MOC’Z

Telephone No.: 419-424-7848, Ext. 140

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)




HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

RESIDENT ADVISORY BOARD

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority administers only a tenant-based rental
assistance program and understands it is not exempt from the Resident Advisory Board
requirement,  Housing Choice Voucher Program participants have been personally
encouraged to seek appointment to the governing body.

At this time there is no vacancy on the Board of Commissioners.

Since there is no RAB, there are no comments attached to this Plan.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF PROGRESS

HMHA Goals Five-Year Plan — Fiscal Years 2005-2009

Housing opportunities have been improved by aggressive vouchering and increasing the
utilization of allocated baseline units. HMHA has designated administrative fee reserves
for a Revolving Security Deposit Loan Program to assist in the housing of the low-
income families being served.

Outreach efforts to landlords have been accomplished by conducting annual landlord
meetings and providing updated information regarding new federal laws affecting
landlords and/or tenants. Guest speakers have included the Hancock County Sheriff and
representatives from Legal Aid of Northwestern Ohio. A Power Point presentation has
also been developed in conjunction with the meetings. Brochures containing information
on the Housing Choice Voucher Program and Housing Quality Standards have been
developed and are provided to prospective landlords.

Voucher management has been improved by increasing SEMAP and attaining the HUD-
designation of High Performer in 2008. HUD-required reports are now filed in a timely
manner.

Improved affirmative measures have been taken to ensure access to assisted housing
regardless of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, and disability by
conducting additional outreach with the local Legal Aid of Northwestern Ohio and Fair
Housing offices.



U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with
the Ohio Consolidated Plan

1, Michael A. Hiler, Chief, QHCP, Ohio Department of Development certify

that the 2010-2014 Five-Year Plan and 2010 Annual PHA Plan of

the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority _is consistent with the Consolidated Plan

of __the State of Ohio prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

[~ / /M\J Date: October 1, 2009

Michael A. Hiler, Chief
Office of Housing and Community Partnerships
Ohio Department of Development

Certification by State and Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consotidated Plan to Accompany the HUD 50075
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226

Expires 03/31/2002

(7/99)

Page 1 of |



Certification by State or Local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Official of PHA Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housing
with the Consolidated Plan Expires 4/30/2011

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the

Consolidated Plan
I Peter M Sehnert the  Mayor, Cityof Findlay  certify that the Five Year and
Annual PHA Plan of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority g consistent with the Consolidated Plan of
Hancock County prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

[Z}%/C %M/h" 9 fye0q

Signed / Dated by Appropriate State or Local Official

form HUD-50077-5L (1/2009)
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226




Statement of Consistency of the Public Housing Authority Plan
With the Community Housing Improvement Strategy

The 2010 (year) Annual and/or __2010-2014 (years) Five-Year Plan for the

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority (housing authority name) is consistent
with the Community Housing Improvement Strategy of __Hancock County, Ohio (city or county).
/z% M —
Signature ~__~"

Pete Selnpert

Printed Name of Signatory

Mo o™

Title .

q ,scz/ 007

Date/




Office of the Mayor
Pete Sehnert

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-424-7137 » Fax: 419-424-7245
www.findlayohio.com

Jim Barker
Safety Director

Bruce Hardy
Service Director

September 29, 2009

RE: Certification of the 2010-2014 5-Year Plan and 2010 Annual Plan
Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority

This document will serve as official certification by the City of Findlay that the Annual Plan
and the Five Year Plan of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority are consistent with the
Consolidated Plan (CHIS) of the City of Findlay prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

The Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority has been diligent in their efforts to assist those
in our community with housing. They have done much to improve the quality of life for
individuals within our area who have issues and needs regarding housing. I wholeheartedly
support their efforts.

=

Pete Sehnert
Mayor

Flag City, USA Our Spirit Shows




Certification by State or Local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Official of PHA Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housing
with the Consolidated Plan Expires 4/36/2011

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the
Consolidated Plan

I Phillip A. Rieglethe Serenotetrmhoumtmmmr certify that the Five Year and
Annual PHA Plan of the Hancock Metropofitan Housing Autharity jg consistent with the Consolidated Plan of
Hancock County prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

v V) W ’
Signed / Dated by Appropriate State or Local Official

form HUD-50077-SL {(1/2009)
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226




Statement of Consistency of the Public Housing Authority Plan
With the Community Housing improvement Strategy

The __2010 (year) Annual and/or _2010-2014 (years) Five-Year Plan for the

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority (housing authority name) is consistent
with the Community Housing mprovement Strategy of __Hancack County, Ohio ___ (city or'county).
gignatubé v

Philip A (\Ze

Printed Name of Signatdry

C O Andbe @
Title

‘7/.) @//)Q

Date

[ acd RD D ,)z(.,o@
Printed Name of Signatory

7 /23 Jog
Date ' o

/thf/(; H /)ﬂ/thn‘ .“/)_I'}m
Printed Nafhe of Signatory o

Title

/bnln.ha LCl s et

Title
C}é c?/f)/@

Date




Edward D. Tngold

Hancock County Commissioners Phillip A. Ricgle

Emily A. Walton
300 South Main Street, Findlay OH ~ Phone 419-424-7044 Fax 419-424-7828
Cheryl K. Farlow, Clerk

September 29, 2009

RE: Certification by local officials of Hancock Metropolitah Housing Authority’s
Plan being consistent with the Hancock County Consolidated Plan (CHIS) 2010
Annual. :

We certify that the 2010 Annual Plan and the 2010-2014 5-Year Plan of Hancock
Metropolitan Housing Authority is consistent with the Consolidated Plan (CHIS) of
Hancock County prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91. - L

The Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority has done an excellent job in'prIOViding
low-income families with safe, decent and affordable housing and we support their
efforts and appreciate what they do for the Hancock County residents.

Phillip A %e?g

=T

Edwtd .Irf)ld/‘j/, e
B Walton, D.V.M. ’ 2
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JAMES G. ZUPKA, C.P.A., INC.
Certified Public Accountants
5240 East 98" Street
Garfield His., Ohio 44125

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (216) 475 -6136 Qhic Society of Certified Public Accountants
Board of Directors ‘ Regional Inspector General for Audit
Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority U.S. Department of Housing and
Findlay, Ohio ; Urban Development

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have andited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing
Authority, Ohio (the Authority), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, as listed in the
Table of Contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based
on our audit. :

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority, Ohio, as of December
31, 2008, and the respective changes in its net assets and its cash flows, for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 17,
7009 on our consideration of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority, Ohio’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 8 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government and Non-
Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

The Authority has not presented the Financial Data Schedules (FDS) required by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development for additional analysis, although not required to be part of the basic
financial statements. The FDS are not available due to revisions in the reporting system that the
Department is now undertaking. '

ames G. Zupka, CPA, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

June 17, 2009



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Unaudited

The Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority’s (the “ Authority”) management’s discussion and
analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an
overview of the Authority’s financial activity, ( ¢) identify changes in the Authority’s financial
 position (it’s ability to address the next and subsequent fiscal year challenges), and (d) identify
individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the
Authority’s financial statements, which begin on page 9.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» During 2008, the Authority’s net assets increased by $94,320 (or 9.4 percent). Since the
Authority engages only in business-type activities, the increase is all in the category of business-
type net assets. Net assets were $1,100,860 and $1,006,540 for fiscal years 2008 and 2007,

respectively.

«  The revenue increased by $836,225 (or 38 percent) during 2008, and was $3,059,921 and
$2.,223,696 for 2008 and 2007, respectively.

. The total expenses of the Authority increased by $27,391 (or 0.93 percent) during 2008.
Expenses were $2,965,601 and $2,938,210 for 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The primary focus of the Authority’s financial statements is on the Authority as a whole. The
Authority-wide perspective allows the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or Authority to Authority) and enhance the Authority’s accountability.

AUTHORITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority-wide financial statements (see pages 9-11) are designed to be corporate-like in that
all business type activities are consolidated into columns, which add to a total for the entire

Authority.

These statements include a Statement of Net Assets, which is similar to a balance sheet. The
Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement
is presented in the format where an asset, minus liabilities, equals “Net Assets”, formerly known as
equity. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “Current”
(convertible into cash within one year), and “Non-Current”.



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Unaudited
The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the “Unrestricted Net Assets”) is designed to represent
the net of all available liquid (non-capital) assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net
assets (formerly equity) are reported in three broad categories:

Net Assets, [nvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This component of net assets consists of all capital assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets

This component of net assets consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the assets
by creditors ( such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements.

Unrestricted Net Assets I
Consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net
of Related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Assets™.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets (similar to an Income Statement). This statement includes operating
revenues, such as rental income, operating expenses, such as administrative, utilities, and
maintenance, and depreciation, and non-operating revenue and expenses, such as investment income
and interest expense.

The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets is the “Change
of Net Assets”, which is similar to net income or loss.

Finally, the Statement of Cash Flows (see page 11) is included which discloses net cash provided
by or used for operating activities, non-capital financing activities and from capital and related
financing activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements
presentation more familiar. The focus is now on major funds. Enterprise funds utilize the full
accrual basis of accounting. The enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting utilized
by the private sector accounting.

Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the Department of Housing and
Urban Development. Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control.



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Unaudited

____——-—————-'_______——"—-_—-—-—_‘_—'__-————

THE AUTHORITY’S PROGRAMS

Business Type Funds

The Housing Choice Voucher Program

Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority administers contracts with independent
landlords that own the property. The Authority subsidizes the family’s rent through a Housing
Assistance Payment made to the landlord. The program is administered under an Annual
Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD. HUD provides Annual Contributions Funding to enable
the Authority to structure a lease that sets the participants’ rent at 30 percent of adjusted household
income.

* Other Non-Major Programs

In addition to the program above, the Authority also operates the following programs. The Authority
received funding from Putman County’s HOME program during the fiscal year. State/Local
activities represent non-HUD resources developed from a variety of activities.

AUTHORITY-WIDE STATEMENT

Statement of Net Assets
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets compared to prior year. The

Authority in engaged only in business-type activities.

Table 1 - Statement of Net Assets .

—___—_—————_u_'_———=—___'—_"—_——

2008 2007

Current and Other Assets $ 1,065,753 § 981,499
Capital Assets 54,056 45345
Total Assets ' 1,119,809 1,026,844
Current Liabilities 14,815 15,938
Non-Current Liabilities 4,134 4.366
Total Liabilities 18.949 20,304
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 54,056 45,345

Restricted 536,472 389,753

Unrestricted 510,332 571.442
Total Net Assets $ 1.100.860 $1,006.540

For more detailed information see page 9 for Statement of Net Assets



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Unaudited

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Assets

Current assets (primarily cash) increased by $84,234 in fiscal year 2008 and current liabilities
decreased by $1,355. The increase in current assets was due primarily to the Authority receiving
some of the 2007 HUD Set Aside Funding, which was received in the middle of 2008,

' Table 2 - Changes of Unrestrictive Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets December 31, 2007 $ 571,442
Resulis of Operations $ 94,320

Adjustments:

Depreciation (1) 12,550
Adjusted Results from Operations 106,870
Capital Expenditures (21,261)
Change in Restricted Net Assets (2) (146,719
Unrestricted Net Assets December 31, 2008 § 510332

(1) Depreciation is treated as an expense and reduces the results of operations but does not have an
impact on unrestricted net assets.

(2) HUD now requires unspent HAP funding for the Housing Choice Voucher Program be classified
as Restricted Net Assets,

While the result of operations is a significant measure of the Authority’s activities, the analysis of
the changes in unrestricted net assets provides a clearer change in financial well-being.

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year.
The Authority is engaged only in business-type activities.

Table 3 - Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007
Revenues:
HUD PHA Operating Grants $3,002,344 $2,105,030
Other Revenues 28,076 40,196
Other Government Grants 19,291 20,424
Investment Income 10.210 58.046
Total Revenues 3,059.921 2,223,696
Expenses:
Administrative 358,561 381,828
Utilities 14,734 12,546
Maintenance 44,417 13,988
General 3,959 18,323
Housing Assistance Payments 2,531,380 2,503,478
Depreciation 12.550 8.047
Total Expenses 2.965.601 2.938.210
Net Increase/(Decrease) $ 94320 §$(714.514)



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Unaudited

M

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

HUD PHA Grants increased significantly from the prior fiscal year. As instructed by HUD, the
Authority took what measures it could to stabilize rents to decrease average HAP payments to help
assist more families in 2008.

Staffing changes during the fiscal year 2008 contributed to the decrease of $23,267 in the
Administrative Expense category.

Depreciation increased due to assets additions during the fiscal vear 2008.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2008, the Authority had $54,056 invested in capital assets as reflected in the
following schedule, which represents a net increase (additions, deductions, and depreciation) from
the prior year. '

Table 4 - CaEital Assets at Year-End !Eet of DeEr'eciation!
M

Business-Type Activities

2008 2007
Equipment - Administrative $ 91,762 § 70,501
Accumulated Depreciation . (31.706) (25.156)
Total $ 54056 § 45345

The following reconciliation summarizes the change in capital assets.

Table 5 - Change in CaBital Assets
M

Beginning Balance $ 45345
Additions : 21,261
Dispositions 0
Depreciation (12,550)
Ending Balance $ 54056

The Authority did not have any outstanding debt at December 31, 2008.



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
—___—__—_-—-————__—
ECONOMIC FACTORS
Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:

« Federal funding of the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

« Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates.

« Local inflationary, recession and employment trends, which affect resident incomes and therefore
the amount of housing assistance

« Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies, and other costs.

FINANCIAL CONTACT
The individual to be contacted regarding this report is Dianne J. Osborn, Executive Director, the

Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority, at 419-424-7848. Specific requests may be submitted to
the Authority at Suite 114, The Family Center, 1800 North Blanchard Street, Findlay, Ohio 45840.



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

—_—_—__————————'—'__——__———-#

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted
. Receivables, Net '
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Furniture and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net
Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Intergovernmental Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Absences
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

$ 499,593
536,472
25,118

4,548

1.065.731

91,762
__(37.706)
54,056

22

54,078

$1.119,809

$ 5,085
9,670
60

14.815

4.134

4,134

18949

54,056
536,472
510,332

$1,100.860



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Operating Revenues
Government Operating Grants
Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Administrative

Utilities
Maintenance
General
Housing Assistance Payment
Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest and Investment Revenue
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss)
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

10

$3,021,635
28,076

3.046.711

358,561
14,734
44,417

3,959
2,531,380
2,953,051

12,550

2,965,601

84,110

10.210

10,210

94,320

1.006.540

$ 1.100.860



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
——

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from HUD

Cash Received from Other Sources
Cash Payments for Housing Assistance
Cash Payments for Operating Expenses
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Purchase of Capital Assets

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Compensated Absence
Accrued Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

11

$3,021,695
11,594
(2,531,380)

422.853
79,056

_ 10210

10210

(21.261)

(21.261)
68,005

968,060

$ 1.036.065

$§ 84,110

12,550

(16,482)
233

149
60

(232)

(1,332)

$  79.056



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

_—___—_—_————-———'——-_#_—-—_-_———-——_——'_'—

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES

Organization .
The Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority (HMHA) is a political subdivision of the

State of Ohio, located in Findlay, Ohio, created under Section 3735.27 of the Ohio
Revised Code, to engage in the acquisition, development, leasing and administration of
low-rent housing program. An Annual Contributions Contract was signed by the HMHA
and the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), to
provide low and moderate income persons with safe and sanitary housing through rent
subsidies, via the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. Based on the criteria
established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) codification 2100,
there are no component units to be included with the reporting entity.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles, as applied to governmental units. The GASB
is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. Pursuant to GASB Statement No, 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority follows GASB guidance as applicable to
proprietary funds and FASB Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The Authority has elected
not to apply FASB statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 to its
business-type activities and enterprise funds. '

Machinery, Furnishings, and Equipment
Machinery, furnishings, and equipment are recorded at cost, over the useful life using the

straight-line method. Total depreciation expense for the 2008 calendar year was $12,500.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows and for presentation of the balance sheet,
cash and cash equivalents consist principally of checking and savings accounts. .

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

12



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)
— e —

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid [tems ‘
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31,

2008, are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for
the prepaid amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense
is reported in the year in which services are consumed.

Compensated Absences
Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee’s

right to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is
probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid
time off or some other means. Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the
termination methiod. The liability is based on an estimate of the amount of accumulated
sick leave that will probably be paid as termination benefits.

The current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid
using expendable available resources. These amounts are recorded in the account
“compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees who have
accumulated unpaid leave are paid.

Financial Statement Format and Content

The format and content of the financial statements included in this report conforms to the
format and content submitted to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, via the Real Estate Assessment Center.

Capital Contributions
This represents contributions made available by HUD with respect to all federally aided

projects under an annual contributions contract.

Budgetary Accounting

The Authority annually prepares its budget as prescribed by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development. This budget is adopted by the Board of the Housing Authority
and then submitted to the Department of Housing and Urban Development. '

I8



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)
e

NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Change in Accounting Principles
For fiscal year 2008, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 49, “Accounting

and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations”, and GASB Statement
No. 50 “Pension Disclosures”. GASB Statement No. 49 provides guidance on how to
calculate and report the costs and obligations associated with pollution cleanup efforts.
GASB Statement No. 50 more closely aligns the financial reporting requirements for
pensions with those for other postemployment benefits. The implementation of GASB
Statements No. 49 and No. 50 did not affect the presentation of the financial statements
of the Authority.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits ,

At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits were $1,036,065 and
the bank balance was $1,055,781. Based on criteria described in GASB Statement No.
40, Deposits and Investments Risk Disclosures, as of December 31, 2008, $250,000 of
the Authority’s bank balance was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and deposits
totaling $805,781 were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Authority’s name.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s
deposits may not be returned. The Authority’s policy is to place deposits with major
local banks approved by the Authority’s Board. All deposits are collateralized with
eligible securities in amounts equal to 105 percent of the carrying value of deposits.
Such collateral, as permitted by Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Code, is held in
financial institution pools at Federal Reserve banks, or at member banks of the Federal
Reserve System, in the name of the respective depository bank, and pledged as a pool of
collateral against the public deposits it holds or in the Authority’s name.

This space intentionally left blank.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

' (CONTINUED)
e

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments
The Authority has a formal investment policy, however, at December 31, 2008 the

Authority had no investments.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses caused by rising interest rates,
the Authority’s investments policy requires that operating funds be invested primarily in
short-term investments maturing within 2 years from the date of purchase and that the
investment portfolio be structured so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations and/or long-term debt payments. The stated intent of the policy is
to avoid the need to sell securities prior to maturity. '

Credit Risk
The credit risk of the Authority’s investments are in the table below. The Authority has
no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Custodial Credit Risk
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority has no
investment policy dealing with investment custodial risk beyond the requirements in
State statute that prohibits payment for investments prior to the delivery of the securities
representing such investments to the controller or qualified trustee.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one institution. The
Authority’s deposits in financial institutions represents 100 percent of its deposits.

Cash and investments at year-end were as follows:

Investments

Maturities

(in Years)
Cash and Investment Type Fair Value <]
Carrying Amount of Deposits - Unrestricted $ 499,593 $ 499,593
Carrying Amount of Deposits - Restricted 536.472 536,472
Totals $ 1036065 $ 1.036.065

Cash Restricted represents the Housing Assistance Payments in excess of the amount
used which is also the restricted net asset amount.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2008 by class is as follows:

Balance Balance
01/01/08 Additions Deletions 12/31/08
Furniture and Equipment $§ 70501 $§ 21261 § 0 § 91762
Total - 70,501 21,261 0 91,762
Accumulated Depreciation -
Furniture and Equipment (25.156) (12.550) 0 . (37,706}
Capital Assets, Net § 45345 § 8711 § 0 § 54056
INSURANCE COVERAGE

The Authority maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for
general liability, health, and building contents. Limits of coverage provided are as
follows:

Limit of

Deductible Coverage
General Liability $ 0 § 2,000,000
Directors and Officers’ Liability 1,000  § 2,000,000
Auto ' 500/0 ACV/1,000,000
Building Contents 500 § 30,000
Crime 250  § 25,000

There were no significant changes in commercial coverage in 2008. Settled claims have
not exceeded insurance coverage during the past 3 years.

NOTE 5: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System
All full-time Authority employees participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement

System (OPERS). OPERS administers three separate pension plans, as described below:

» The Traditional Pension Plan (TP} - a cost-sharing, multiple—employer defined benefit
pension plan; -

» The Member-Directed Plan (MD) - a benefit contribution plan in which the member
invests both member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over
five years at 20 percent per year). Under the Member-Directed plan, members
accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of the member and (vested) employer
contributions plus any investment earnings.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 5:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

+ The Combined Plan (CO) - a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, Under the Combined plan, employer contributions are invested by the retirement
system to provide a formula retirement benefit similar in nature to the Traditional
Pension plan benefit. Member contributions, the investment of which is self-directed
by the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner similar to the member-
directed plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor, death benefits, and annual cost ofliving
adjustments to members of both the Traditional Pension and the Combined plans.
Members of the Member-Directed plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits. Authority
to establish and amend benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may
obtain a copy by making a written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 or 1-800-222-7377 or by using the OPERS
website at www.opers.org.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer
contributions. For 2008, member and employer contribution rates were consistent across
all three plans (TP,MD, and CO). Plan members are required to contribute 10 percent
of their annual covered salary to fund pension obligations. A portion of the Authority’s
contributions is used to fund pension obligations with the remainder being used to fund
health care benefits; for 2008, 7 percent of the annual covered salary was the portion
used to fund pension obligations. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory
authority requiring public employers to fund post-employment health care through their
contributions to OPERS. The Authority’s required contributions to OPERS for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, were $34,897, $34,339, and $25.883,
respectively. Of those amounts were Member-Directed contributions made by the
Authority in the amount of $3,618, $1,259 and $1,063 for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. The full amount has been contributed for 2008, 2007,
and 2006.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)
—_— =

NOTE 6: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System :

The Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) provides post-retirement
health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio
service credit. Health care coverage for disability benefit recipients and primary survivor
recipients is available with both the Traditional and the Combined Plan; however, health
care benefits are not statutorily guaranteed. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do
not qualify for ancillary benefits, including post-employment health care coverage. The
health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 45. A portion of
each employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post-retirement
health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer
contributions. The 2008 employer rate was 14.00 percent of covered payroll. The Ohio
Revised Code currently limits the employer contribution to a rate not to exceed 14.00
percent of covered payroll for State and local employer units. Active members do not
make contributions to the OPEB Plan.

OPERS Post-Employment Health Care Plan was established under, and is administered
in accordance with, Internal Revenue Code 401 (h). Each year, the OPERS Retirement
Board determines the portion of the employer contribution rate that will be set aside for
funding of post-employment health care benefits. The portion of employer contributions
allocated to health care was 7.00 percent of covered payroll for the period. The OPERS
Retirement Board is also authorized to establish rules for the payment of a portion of the
health care benefits provided by the retiree or their surviving beneficiaries. Payment
amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and the coverage selected.

Benefits are advance-funded using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.
Significant actuarial assumptions, based on OPERS’ latest actuarial review performed
as of December 31, 2007, include a rate of return on investments of 6.50 percent, an
annual increase in active employee total payroll of 4 percent compounded annually
(assuming no change in the number of active employees), and an additional increase in
total payroll of between .50 percent and 6.30 percent based on additional annual pay
increases. Health care premiums were assumed to increase at the projected wage
inflation rate plus an additional factor ranging from .50 percent to 5 percent annually for
the next 8 years. In subsequent years (9 and beyond), health care costs were assumed to
increase at 4 percent (the projected wage inflation rate).

18



HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(CONTINUED)
——

NOTE 6: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION (Continued}

Ohio Public Emplovees Retirement System (Continued)
All investments are carried at market. For actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed

market approach is used. Assets are adjusted to reflect 25 percent of uprealized market
appreciation or depreciation on investment assets annually, not to exceed a 12 percent
corridor.

As of December 31, 2008, the number of active contributing participants in the
Traditional Pension and Combined plans totaled 363,503. The number of active
contributing participants for both plans used in the December 31, 2007, actuarial
valuation was 364,076. Actual Authority contributions for 2008 which were used to fund
post-employment benefits were $17,449. The actual contribution and the actuarially
required contribution amounts are the same. The actuarial value of OPERS’ net assets
available for payment of benefits at December 31, 2007 (the latest information available)
was $12.8 billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability were $29.8 billion and $17.0 billion, respectively.

On September 9, 2004, the OPERS Retirement Board adopted a Health Care Preservation
Plan (HCPP) with an effective date of January 1,2007. The HCPP restructures OPERS’
health care coverage to improve the financial solvency of the fund in response to
increasing health care costs. Member and employer contribution rates increased as of

* January 1, 2006, January 1, 2007, and January 1, 2008, which allowed additional funds
to be allocated to the health care plan.

Under HCPP, retirees eligible for health care coverage will receive a graded monthly
allocation based on their years of service at retirement. The Plan incorporates a cafeteria
approach, offering a broad range of health care options that allow the benefit recipients
to use their monthly allocation to purchase health care coverage customized to meet their
individual needs. If the monthly allocation exceeds the cost of the options selected, the
excess is deposited into a Retiree Medical Account that can be used to fund future health
care eXpenses.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

| (CONTINUED) |

NOTE 7:

NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation and sick leave policies are established by the Board of Commissioners based
on local and state laws.

All employees earn .0575 hours of sick leave for every hour of service, subject to a
maximum of 15 days of sick leave per year. Unused sick leave may accumulate without
limit. An employee with at least 10 years of service to the Authority who dies or retires
under the provisions of OPERS and who was hired by the Authority priot to March 10,
1994, shall be paid for two-thirds (2/3) of accumulated sick leave to their credit, not to
exceed 120 days, as of the date of their separation or death. Those employees hired on
or after March 10, 1994, shall be paid for one-fourth (1/4) of accumulated sick leave to
their credit, not to exceed 30 days, as of the date of their separation. All full-time and
permanent part-time employees earn vacation leave based on length of service. Vacation
leave earned as of the employee’s anniversary date must be used within 12 months of that
date, subject to exceptions outlined in the policy.

At December 31, 2008, based on the vesting method, $4,366 was accrued by the
Authority for unused vacation and sick leave. All unused leave is considered non-
current.

Balance Balance
01/01/08 Additions Deletions 12/31/08
$ 4366 § 9,120 § (9,352) ¥ 4,134

CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Authority had no material operating lease commitments or material capital or
construction commitments at December 31, 2008.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

o O U Y AN A N A A e e

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal
grant activity of Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations.
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Federal Grantor/ Federal Agency or
Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Pass-Through Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Direct Programs:
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities 14.181 $ 310,250
Housing Assistance Payments
Section 8 - Housing Choice Voucher Program 14.871 OHO82VO
C-5520-V 2.692.094

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban ,
Development - Direct Programs 3.002.344

Passed Through Putnam County

HOME Program - Putnam County - 14.239 19,291
Total Passed Through Programs | 19.291
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 3 3,091635

This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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JAMES G. ZUPKA, C.P.A., INC.
Certified Public Accountants
5240 East 98™ Street
Garfield Hts., Ohio 44125

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountant {216) 475 -6136 Ohio Society of Cartified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors ‘ Regional Inspector General for Audit
Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority Department of Housing and Urban
Findlay, Ohio ‘ Development

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority,
Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated
June 17, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of .
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Authority’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Authority’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Authority’s
internal control.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will
not be prevented or detected by the Authority’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free

of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material affect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain additional matters that we reported to the management of the Hancock
Metropolitan Housing Authority in separate letter dated June 17, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

James G. Zupka, CPA, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

June 17, 2009
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JAMES G. ZUPKA, C.P.A., INC.
Certified Public Accountants
5240 East 98" Street
Garfield Hts., Ohio 44125

Member American Institute of Certified Public Acceuntants (216) 475 - 6136 Ohio Society of Certtified Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors Regional Inspector General of Audit
Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority Department of Housing and Urban
Findlay, Chio Development

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the Hancock Metropolitan Housing Authority (the Authority)

with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major Federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Authority’s major Federal programs are
identified in the Summary of Auditor’s Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements applicable to each of its major Federal programs is the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2008.
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Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
applicable to Federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major Federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance..

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federat
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal contro] over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

James G. Zupka CPA, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

June 17, 2009
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 & .505
DECEMBER 31, 2008

w

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

2008(1) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
2008(ii) Were there any material control weakness

conditions reported at the financial statement

level (GAGAS)? No
2008(ii) Were there any other significant deficiencies

in internal control reported at the financial

statements level (GAGAS)? No
2008(iii) Was there any reported material noncompliance

at the financial statement level (GAGAS)? No
2008(iv) Were there any material internal control

weakness conditions reported for major

Federal programs? No
2008(iv) Were there any other reportable internal

control weakness conditions reported for

major Federal programs? , No
2008(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinioh Unqualified
2008(vi) Are there any reportable findings under .5107 No

2008(vii). Major Programs (list):
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers - CFDA #14.871

2008(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: >$300,000
Type B: >all others

2008(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No

7. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED TO BE

REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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HANCOCK METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

e e e e
e e

The audit report for the prior year ended December 31, 2007 contained no findings or citations other
than management letter comments.
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